
Page 1 BOC/STAFF/03/24/2011

STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113
THURSDAY, MARCH 24, 2011

8:30 A.M.

Commissioners Present: Deb Schorr, Chair
Larry Hudkins
Jane Raybould
Brent Smoyer

Commissioners Absent: Bernie Heier, Vice Chair

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer
Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney 
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

The Chair opened the meeting at 8:30 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF THE THURSDAY, MARCH 17, 2011 STAFF
MEETING MINUTES

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Raybould seconded approval of the March 17, 2011
Staff Meeting minutes.  Hudkins, Raybould, Smoyer and Schorr voted
aye.  Heier was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0. 

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Justice Council 

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Smoyer seconded approval of the addition to the
agenda.  Smoyer, Raybould, Hudkins and Schorr voted aye.  Heier was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

 3 LEGISLATIVE UPDATE - Gordon Kissel and Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S
Associates 



Page 2 BOC/STAFF/03/24/2011

Gordon Kissel, Kissel/E&S Associates, presented a legislative update and a legislative
bills of interest report (Exhibits A and B). 

Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer, noted the Board received an email from
Larry Dix, Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) Executive Director,
requesting support of Legislative Bill (LB) 84 (Adopt the Build Nebraska Act and
authorize bonds for the highway system).

Raybould inquired about an amendment that would remove the bonding component.

Joe Kohout, Kissel/E&S Associates, said that is one of the concepts still being
discussed. 

Raybould asked why some senators find bonding objectionable.

Kohout attributed it to a fundamental principal among the Nebraska populace that
government shouldn’t go into debt to fund projects.  He added that the debt
component is one of Governor Heineman’s primary objections.

Members of the Board agreed to contact certain members of the Lancaster County
Senate Delegation, who appear to be undecided on this issue, to ask them to vote in
favor of the legislation.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Justice Council

Eagan asked whether the Board would like to have a member serve on the Justice
Council.  He noted that Kim Etherton, Community Corrections Director, has offered to
serve as the facilitator.

Raybould and Smoyer both expressed interest in serving.

The Chair noted that Commissioner Heier has served as the Board’s liaison for
Corrections and may also have an interest in serving.  She asked that a decision be
delayed until April 7th when all five Commissioners are scheduled to be present.  

ACTION ITEMS

A. Notice of Contract Termination to American Family Life Assurance
Company of Columbus (AFLAC) (Voluntary Benefits)



Page 3 BOC/STAFF/03/24/2011

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Smoyer seconded approval.  Hudkins, Raybould,
Smoyer and Schorr voted aye.  Heier was absent from voting.  Motion
carried 4-0.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. County Agency Tours

The Board will tour departments on Tuesday, April 5th, following the County Board of
Commissioners Meeting and on Thursday, April 7th following attendance at a luncheon
hosted by the Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) at the Cornhusker
Marriott Hotel in recognition of Counties’ Legislative Day.

B. Clean Your Files Week (April 17-23, 2011)

There was general consensus to participate in the event.

C. County Government Week

Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk, explain the National Association of County Officials
(NACo) has designated April, 2011 as National County Government Month.  She noted
the following suggestions with regard to promotion of county government:

  1 Speak to a civic club about the county’s services
  2 Visit a school and educate students about county government
  3 Plan a career day
  4 Set up tours of county offices and facilities for students
  5 Allow students to “shadow” a commissioner or the chief administrative officer

for a day
  6 Sponsor a coloring or poster contest for elementary students focusing on a

county government theme 
  7 Prepare and distribute “County Fact Sheets” on programs and services the

County provides.
  8 Release a county “Fact of the Day” each day during National County

Government Month
  9 Hold an open house and tours of facilities for the public
10 Create a citizens’ academy
11 Encourage volunteerism
12 Moderate a college or high school debate addressing issues affecting local

government
13 Schedule editorial board meeting with local newspapers

Board consensus was to proceed with Numbers 2, 5, 8, and 9.  Since the theme this
year is “Serving Our Veterans, Armed Forces and Their Families”, the Board will ask



Page 4 BOC/STAFF/03/24/2011

Gary Chalupa, Veterans Service Officer and/or Retired General Ed Binder to accompany
members of the Board when they visit area schools.  The Board also plans to issue a
proclamation and press release in support of National County Government Month and
to include a link to the NACo website on the County’ website.

D. Mayor’s News Conference Regarding Sherman Field Forever Campaign
(March 31, 2011 at 10:00 a.m.)

It was noted Commissioner Smoyer will represent the Board at the news conference
and will speak about the County’s contribution to the campaign with Visitors
Improvement Fund dollars.

E. City-County Common Meeting (April 5, 2011)

The following agenda items were suggested: 1) Fiscal Year 2011/2012 Projected
Budget for Information Services (IS); 2) Health Insurance Request for Proposals (RFP);
and 3) Consolidation.

F. Jail Tour (April 12, 2011)

There was no objection to the proposed date.

 4 A) COUNTY CHANGE OF ZONE NO. 10026, WIND ENERGY
CONVERSION SYSTEM/TURBINES; AND B) COUNTY CHANGE OF
ZONE NO. 11004, FINAL ACTION BY PLANNING COMMISSION -
Mike DeKalb, Planner

A) County Change of Zone No. 10026

Mike DeKalb, Planner, gave an overview of County Change of Zone No. 10026, a
request from the Planning Director for a text amendment to the Lancaster County
Zoning Resolution to allow commercial wind energy conversion systems/turbines by
special permit in the Agricultural (AG) District (Exhibit C).  He noted the County had
been approached by a commercial wind company that was exploring the possibility of
erecting a wind farm with about 30 large commercial machines in the southern part of
the county.  There is a recommendation of approval from Planning staff and the
Planning Commission.  The Planning Commission has also recommended approval of a
similar text amendment to the City zoning ordinance.

Raybould asked whether the potential for environmental impact has been addressed,
such as prohibiting location in a bird migratory path.



Page 5 BOC/STAFF/03/24/2011

DeKalb said the Nebraska Game and Parks Commission and Lower Platte South Natural
Resources District (NRD) were advised of the proposed text amendment and will be
notified if an area of application is in close proximity to a resource.  He said the
machines can also cause radar interference and said the Planning Department
consulted the Lincoln Airport Authority and Nebraska Department of Aeronautics about
potential impact.

B) County Change of Zone No. 11004

DeKalb gave an overview of County Change of Zone No. 11004, a request from the
Planning Director for a text amendment to the Lancaster County Zoning Resolution to:
1) Delegate final action on special permits to the Planning Commission, with a
provision for appeal to the County Board; and 2) Delegate final action on County Board
of Zoning Appeals applications to the County Board of Zoning Appeals, with a provision
for appeal to the County Board (Exhibit D).  He said the intent is to streamline the
process for applicants.  Planning staff and the Planning Commission have
recommended approval.

 5 LANCASTER COUNTY ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT - Dennis Meyer,
Budget and Fiscal Officer; Jeremy Vokt and Amanda Chantiam, Bland &
Associates

Jeremy Vokt and Amanda Chantiam, Bland & Associates, gave an overview of the audit
report for the year ending June 30, 2010 (Exhibit E).   Chantiam noted it is an
unqualified opinion which is the best type of report an auditee may receive from an
external auditor.

In response to a request from Hudkins, Vokt agreed to forward the Board additional
information on the loss on sale of capital assets (see Page 8).

Hudkins also inquired about the Lancaster Manor Fund (see Pages 56 and 59).

Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, said the figures shown in the report for the
Manor are prior to its sale (the Lancaster Manor Asset Purchase Agreement is
referenced on Page 46).

Chantiam said the report indicates two significant deficiencies:

1) The County should prepare the financial statements.

Meyer said he would need additional staff to comply with the finding.  



Page 6 BOC/STAFF/03/24/2011

2) The County did not reconcile transfers between related entities during
the year.  Additionally, the County did not capitalize a transfer-in of
capital outlay incurred by the Public Building Commission (PBC) and
required to be transferred at 50% to the County.

Meyer said this finding was also relayed to the PBC and said he believes the solution is
to fully utilize the County’s financial system for the PBC.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Smoyer seconded to add a salvage retention
agreement to the agenda.  Hudkins, Raybould, Smoyer and Schorr voted
aye.  Heier was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

Eagan presented an email from Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager, indicating one of the
Community Mental Health Center’s (CMHC’s) vehicles was damaged and deemed a
total loss by the insurance company, due to the high number of miles the vehicle was
driven (Exhibit F).  He said CMHC has received a repair estimate that is less than the
insurance settlement.

Raybould questioned whether the County would still be able to obtain liability coverage
for the vehicle if it is salvaged.

The item was held for additional information.

 6 LABOR NEGOTIATIONS AND PENDING LITIGATION - Mark Koller,
Personnel Director; John Cripe, Classification and Compensation
Manager; Nicole Gross, Compensation Technician; Tom Fox, Deputy
County Attorney

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Smoyer seconded to enter Executive Session at 9:45
a.m. for the purpose of protecting the public interest with regards to
discussion of labor negotiations and pending litigation.  Hudkins,
Raybould, Smoyer and Schorr voted aye.  Heier was absent from voting.
Motion carried 4-0.

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Hudkins seconded to exit Executive Session at 10:24
a.m.  Smoyer, Raybould, Hudkins and Schorr voted aye.  Heier was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

 7 COUNTY VEHICLE FLEET - Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager; Tom
Champoux, UNICO Group, Inc.



Page 7 BOC/STAFF/03/24/2011

Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager, distributed information regarding insurance costs for
county vehicles and mileage reimbursement rates and amounts (Exhibits G, H & I).

Tom Champoux, UNICO Group, Inc., said employees who drive their own vehicles for
business use assume additional liability and are advised to have an incidental business
use endorsement for their vehicle.  He estimated the cost at $50 to $100, adding not
all insurance companies provide this coverage.  Champoux said the County has hired
and non-owned auto coverage in place and would also be protected by the tort claims
cap if an employee were to cause a multi-million dollar accident but said he is not sure
whether the cap would also apply to the employee.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Smoyer seconded to request a legal opinion on the
issue of liability for individuals driving for the County in the course of
business.  Raybould, Hudkins, Smoyer and Schorr voted aye.  Heier was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

Champoux recommended that the County also set a minimum insurance limit.

Eckley said insurance coverage will need to be monitored to insure compliance and job
descriptions may need to be revised if employees will be required to provide their own
transportation.  There could also be workers’ compensation issues.

There was general consensus to: 1) Check with other counties, such as Douglas and
Sarpy, to see how they have addressed this issue; and 2) Schedule discussion of how
much business travel could be transferred to personal vehicles on a Management
Team Meeting agenda.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

B. Salvage Retention Agreement

Raybould asked Eckley whether liability insurance covers salvage vehicles.

Eckley said it does.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Smoyer seconded to authorize the Chair to sign the
salvage retention agreement.  Hudkins, Smoyer, Raybould and Schorr
voted aye.  Heier was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.



Page 8 BOC/STAFF/03/24/2011

 8 INFORMATION SERVICES (IS) DISCUSSION - Steven Henderson,
Information Services (IS) Manager

Steven Henderson, Information Services (IS) Manager, said he has had a number of
conversations over the last few weeks with Dennis Meyer, County Budget and Fiscal
Officer; Steve Hubka, City Budget Officer; and the Mayor’s Office regarding the budget
and whether the payment flow for mainframe services can be restructured to minimize
the immediate budget impact of Lincoln Electric System’s departure from the
mainframe.  He said the largest consumer of the mainframe service is the County
Treasurer’s Office.  There are also several City departments that are significant
mainframe users.  Henderson said it was decided that the rates for the County
Treasurer’s Office will be restructured over the next two to three years to provide
relief.  He said the impact for the rest of the City and County customers drops off
enough that an undue burden could not be determined at this point in time. 
Henderson said this does not solve the mainframe problem but gives his department
more time to analyze and determine the future of IS’s mainframe services.  Henderson
said the question will be whether the mainframe remains a viable and reasonable tool
for the City and County.  He said other options for the future include: 1) Broaden
customer base; 2) Utilize the State’s mainframe environment; and 3) Cloud computing
(the provision of computational resources on demand via a computer network). 
Henderson said he will continue to research options and will bring a recommendation
back to the Board.  

It was noted that the County’s interlocal agreement with the City for a joint data
processing division will expire in September and Henderson was asked to gather the
information as quickly as possible so the Board can decide whether to renew that
agreement.

Schorr said she believes the Board should consider issuing a Request for Proposals
(RFP) for IS services.

Henderson also suggested the need to re-examine utilization of the Geographic
Information System (GIS), explaining a large part of the increase for GIS is related to
preparing for technical advances in that area.

Meyer noted there is a new $85,000 line item in the budget this year that is related to
GIS.

Board consensus was to schedule GIS discussion on the March 31st Staff Meeting
agenda.



Page 9 BOC/STAFF/03/24/2011

 9 JUVENILE EARLY ASSESSMENT EVALUATION - Joe Kelly, County
Attorney; Alicia Henderson, Chief Deputy County Attorney, Juvenile
Division; Kit Boesch, Human Services Administrator; Kristi Bauer,
Attorney

Alicia Henderson, Chief Deputy County Attorney, Juvenile Division, gave an overview of
the Early Assessment Process in the Juvenile Court Division of the County Attorney’s
Office (Exhibits J & K).  She noted the Human Services Department obtained a Crime
Commission grant that allowed the County Attorney’s Juvenile Court Division to hire
Kristi Bauer, a former deputy county attorney, for one year to serve as an Assessment
Specialist. 

Bauer said she screens juvenile law citations, referrals from law enforcement and the
assessments by Sara Kliewer, who works through Cedars Youth Services, and decides 
whether to refer the juveniles who were cited to diversion or to an attorney for filing. 
She said turnaround following the assessment is usually one week.  

10 A) MILLIMAN ACTUARIAL CONTRACT; AND B) RECORDS
MANAGEMENT PAROLE PROJECT - Brittany Behrens, Deputy County
Attorney 

A) Milliman Actuarial Contract

Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney, said Milliman will not agree to a limited
liability clause but has agreed to extend the liability cap to $100,000.

B) Records Management Parole Project

Behrens said she has drafted a contract with the State for Records and Information
Management to microfilm documents for the Judicial Users System to Improve Court
Efficiency (JUSTICE), the State Court Administrator’s database for District and County
Courts (see March 10, 2011 Staff Meeting minutes).  She noted that compensation will
be on a per image and per roll basis.

Brian Pillard, Records & Information Manager, appeared and requested authorization
to increase staff hours to perform the work.

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Hudkins seconded to authorize additional hours for
the employee who is currently working 21 hours per week, as needed to
perform the additional work.  Hudkins, Raybould, Smoyer and Schorr
voted aye.  Heier was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.



Page 10 BOC/STAFF/03/24/2011

11 BUDGET UPDATE - Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer

Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, said county departments are struggling with
how to absorb rent and Information Service (IS) rate increases.

Schorr asked whether any IS projects could be deferred.

Meyer said he has posed that question but did not receive an answer.

Hudkins asked whether the City plans to exempt IS from its directive to city
departments to submit budgets at 97% of last year’s budget.

Meyer said IS operates as an enterprise fund and the City may decide not to hold it to
the budget restriction.

Troy Hawk, Court Administrator, Lancaster County District Court, appeared and
discussed his department’s budget.

Raybould suggested reductions could be made to the District Court’s budget by
reducing the fees paid to court appointed attorneys and witnesses and asking jurors to
waive their fees.

Hawk said he does not believe State Statutes provide for a waiver of fees and said it is
not the Judges place to advocate such a position.  He said the rate paid to court
appointed attorneys is low for the market and has not been increased since 2005. 
NOTE: The rate is $65 per hour for County Court and $75 per hour for District Court.

Raybould asked whether video conferencing could be utilized for expert witnesses as a
cost savings measure.

Hawk said evidence may not be presented via video conferencing.

Raybould suggested that lodging of jurors might be another area of the budget that
could be reduced. 

Hawk explained that criminal defendants in District Court have the right to request that
the jury be sequestered.

Hudkins suggested that District Court try to negotiate a reduced room rate for juries.

Hawk said he will work with the Purchasing Department in that regard.



Page 11 BOC/STAFF/03/24/2011

Raybould suggested additional areas to explore for budget reductions include security
staffing for the government complex and health insurance contributions.  She also
stated she would be willing to assist departments in making reductions to their
budgets.  

12 ACTION ITEMS

A. Notice of Contract Termination to American Family Life Assurance
Company of Columbus (AFLAC) (Voluntary Benefits)

Item was moved forward on the agenda.

13 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.

14 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. County Agency Tours
B. Clean Your Files Week (April 17-23, 2011)
C. County Government Week
D. Mayor’s News Conference Regarding Sherman Field Forever Campaign

(March 31, 2011 at 10:00 a.m.)
E. City-County Common Meeting (April 5, 2011)
F. Jail Tour (April 12, 2011)

Items A-F were moved forward on the agenda.

15 PENDING

There were no pending items.

16 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

The Chair asked that the list of meetings be limited to Board committee assignments. 
Board members may report on other meetings they have attended by asking that the
item be scheduled on the agenda.

A. Meeting with the Mayor - Smoyer

Smoyer said they discussed ways to fund widening of Havelock Avenue by the
Lancaster Event Center and County involvement with the Haymarket Arena Project.



Page 12 BOC/STAFF/03/24/2011

B. Board of Equalization Meeting - Raybould, Smoyer

Raybould and Smoyer reported that they met with Tom Kubert, Great Plains Appraisal
Company, Inc. (Referee Coordinator), and discussed options for Board of Equalization
hearings.

C. District Energy Corporation (DEC) - Hudkins, Heier

Hudkins said the DEC voted to support a petition for reclassification of 145 wells that 
were drilled for its geothermal energy facilities project at the new Lancaster County
Adult Detention Facility (LCADF) on Southwest 40th Street.  NOTE: The Nebraska
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) rejected the wells because the
boreholes did not meet state specifications. 

D. Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Advisory Committee -
Raybould

Raybould said discussion focused on the budget.  She also reported that the CMHC is
in negotiations for a contract with the Lincoln Regional Center for monitoring sex
offenders in the community.

17 EMERGENCY ITEMS AND OTHER BUSINESS

There were no emergency items or other business.

18 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Hudkins seconded to adjourn the meeting at 12:40
p.m.  Hudkins, Raybould, Smoyer and Schorr voted aye.  Heier was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

__________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk








































































































































































































































































































































